
High Peak Borough Council

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE (HPBC) AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 18 July 2018

Time: 1.00 pm

Venue: The Committee Room - Municipal Buildings, Glossop

10 July 2018

PART 1
1. Appointment of Chairman. 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 
i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
ii) Other Interests

3. Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence for Edwards Wine Bar, Station 
Approach, Hadfield, Glossop, SK13 1AA (Pages 3 - 108)

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Licensing Sub-Committee (HPBC)
Councillor S Young Councillor I Huddlestone
Councillor C Johnson

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to Licensing Sub-Committee

18 July 2018

Appendices Attached.

Appendix 1 – Copy of the application. 
Appendix 2 – Copies of representations opposing the application.
Appendix 3 – Location plan to show the proximity of the objectors to the 
premises.
Appendix 4 – Summary of historical complaints.
Appendix 5 -  Copies of representations in support of the application.
Appendix 6 – Location plan of the premises submitted by applicant’s agent.

Reason for the report:

1.1 To hold a hearing to determine the application for the Grant of a 
Premises Licence in respect of Edwards Wine Bar, Station Approach, 
Hadfield, Glossop, SK13 1AA  within the provisions of the Licensing 
Act 2003 due to relevant representations being received from 
interested parties. 

TITLE: Application for the Grant of a Premises 
Licence for Edwards Wine Bar, Station 
Approach, Hadfield, Glossop, SK13 1AA.

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Tony Kemp

OFFICER: Mike Towers, Senior Officer (Housing, Public 
Health & Licensing

WARD:              Hadfield North.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Executive Summary  

2.1 The above application was received on 21 May 2018 from Mr Tony 
Dales, Bakers Solicitors, 89 High Street West, Glossop, SK13 8BB 
on behalf of the applicant Mr Roy Irving. During the consultation 
period 18 relevant representations were received opposing the grant 
of the application and 3 in support of the application. Therefore, the 
application is required to be determined by the Licensing Sub-
Committee.

Background:

2.2   An application was received on 21 May 2018 from Mr Tony Dales, 
Bakers Solicitors, 89 High Street West, Glossop, SK13 8BB on 
behalf of Mr Roy Irving,47 West Drive, Tintwhistle, Derbyshire, SK13 
1LK for the Grant of a Premises Licence in respect of Edwards Wine 
Bar, Station Approach, Hadfield, Glossop, SK13 8BB. A copy of the 
application and plans showing the areas to be licensed is attached at 
Appendix 12.

The licensable activities applied for are:-

 Live music (indoors), Recorded music (indoors), 
Performance of dance (indoors), Supply of alcohol (for 
consumption on and off the premises):-    
Sunday to Thursday:- 10:00 – 23:30
Friday and Saturday:- 10:00 – 01:30

 Seasonal Variations:- 

 On the day preceding a Bank Holiday:-  Live and recorded 
music and performance of dance:- 10:00 – 01:00. 

 On the day preceding a Bank Holiday:- the supply of 
alcohol:- 10:00 – 01:30.

 New Year’s Eve:- Live and recorded music, the performance 
of dance and the supply of alcohol:- 10:00 – 03:00.

The opening times of the premises applied for are:-

 Sunday to Thursday:- 06:30 – 00:00
 Friday and Saturday:- 06.30 – 01:30

Seasonal Variations for the opening times of the premises:-
 

 On the day preceding a Bank Holiday:- 06:30 – 01:30
 New Year’s Eve:- 06:30 – 03:30

Page 4



2.3 The premises previously held a premises licence under the 
Licensing Act 2003 which permitted the following licensable 
activities:-

 Films, Indoor sporting events, Live music, Recorded music, 
Performance of dance, Anything similar to music and dance:-
Sunday to Thursday:- 10:00 – 00:30
Friday and Saturday:- 10:00 – 02:30 (Films and indoor 
sporting events only, all other regulated entertainment until 
01:30).

 Sale of alcohol (for consumption on and off the premises):-
Sunday to Thursday:- 10:00 – 00:00
Friday and Saturday:- 10:00 – 02:00

The hours the premises were permitted to be open:-
Sunday to Thursday:- 10:00 – 00:30
Friday and Saturday:- 10:00 – 02:30

From the beginning of New Year’s Eve until the end of New 
Year’s Day for all regulated entertainment, sale of alcohol 
and opening of the premises.

2.4 This premises licence lapsed due to the dissolution of the Ltd 
Company who previously held the licence and therefore the 
applicant was unable to transfer the licence.

2.5 In accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 
consultation on the grant application was originally conducted 
between 22 May 2018 and 18 June 2018  by the displaying of a 
public notice on the premises and in a local newspaper namely the 
Glossop Chronicle (24 May 2018). However, the consultation period 
was extended to 28 June 2018 by the Licensing Authority at High 
Peak Borough Council due to an error with the plans submitted with 
the application.

2.6 During the consultation period Derbyshire Police and the applicant 
discussed the application and the proposed conditions. An 
agreement was reached that conditions 3 and 4 detailed on the 
“statement to support all 4 licensing objectives” and which refer to a 
purchasing policy and purchasing records were not necessary as 
the applicant had no intention of selling tobacco products and was 
required to keep records of alcohol purchases for his accountant. 
Derbyshire Police did however request the following conditions:-

Page 5



“The Designated Premises Supervisor (or person nominated by 
them) will undertake risk assessments of upcoming events held 
either at the premises or in the locality that are likely to result in 
additional custom and/or a change to the usual customer base at 
the premises. The risk assessment will be recorded in the incident 
log and will detail the following:-

 The nature of the event;
 The likely attendance,
 Any special staffing requirements;
 Whether door staff are to be employed for the duration of 

the event, including the number to be employed and the 
times of their employment.

On 11 June 2018 the applicant agreed to the above conditions 
being appended to the premises licence should the application be 
deemed granted.

2.7 On 15 June 2018 Licensing Services received confirmation that 
having discussed the application, Mr Matthew Rhodes, 
Environmental Health Officer at High Peak Borough Council and 
the applicant and his agent had agreed that the following conditions 
be appended to the premises licence should it be deemed granted:-

 All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 
22:30 hours, or at any time when regulated entertainment 
takes place, except for the immediate access and egress of 
persons.

  There will be no external loud speakers
 Drinks shall not be taken into the outside seating area after   

22:30 
 Staff shall monitor customers smoking outside the premises 

on a regular basis and ensure patrons do not cause a 
public nuisance.

 No bottles, glasses or similar items may be disposed of in 
outside receptacles after 22:30.

 

During the consultation period Derbyshire Trading Standards 
Department also entered into negotiations with the applicant and 
his agent and the following conditions were also agreed to be 
appended to the licence if deemed granted:-

 Full training is provided to staff on commencement of 
employment on the law relating to all age-restricted products 
sold and any system or procedures they are expected to 

Page 6



follow in the course of dealing with these goods. Refresher 
training should be provided at regular intervals (at least 6 
monthly).

 Records detailing the training provided will be kept on the 
premises for production, on request, to an officer of a 
Responsible Authority. Records shall be retained on the 
premises for a minimum of 2 years

 The age verification policy applying to the premises is 
“Challenge 25”, that means that anyone attempting to 
purchase alcohol (or other minimum 18 restricted product) 
that appears under the age of 25 years will be asked to 
prove their age. Acceptable forms of identification will be a 
PASS accredited proof of age card, photo driving licence or 
passport. Failure to produce satisfactory proof of age will 
result in a refused sale.

 Clear, prominent and unobstructed signage informing 
customers of the age verification policy in operation and the 
age restrictions on products, will be clearly displayed at:-

a) all entry points to the premises;
b) adjacent to the products, where displayed, and
c) all points of sale.

 A system of recording sales refused under the age 
verification policy will be operated at all times.

 At least weekly, the Designated Premises Supervisor (or 
deputy, authorised in writing) will:-

a) examine the record and compare it against the   
normal operating pattern for the premises;

b) indicate any action required following that 
examination;

c) sign off/endorse the record to indicate the above 
points have been carried out.

 The refusal record will be kept on the premises for 
production, on request, to an officer of a Responsible 
Authority. Records shall be retained on the premises for a 
minimum of 2 years.

Relevant Representations

2.8 Responsible Authorities

Planning Officer – None received

Page 7



Health and Safety Authority – None received
Child Protection Body – None received
Home Office Immigration – None received
Derbyshire Public Health - None received
Derbyshire Police – Conditions agreed during the consultation 
period.
Environmental Health Officer – Conditions agreed during the 
consultation period.
Derbyshire County Council Trading Standards – Conditions agreed 
during the consultation period.

2.9    Other Persons

During the consultation period 18 representations objecting to the 
application were received from interested parties. Copies of these 
are attached at Appendix 2 with a copy of Mr Peter Clayton’s 
objection letter which is referred to on the representation forms.
 

2.10 The committee are advised that the relevant points of the 
representations are based around the hours applied for being too 
long which may lead to public nuisance and anti-social behaviour 
and the hours applied for regulated entertainment being too long 
which may result in noise pollution. The representations also refer 
to previous experiences of loud, rowdy behaviour and inappropriate 
language when patrons have previously left the premises. Concerns 
are also raised regarding noise breakout during access and egress 
to the outside terrace via the french windows.

2.11 A location plan to show the proximity of the objectors to the 
premises is attached at Appendix 3.

2.12 On 21 June 2018 Dr Geoff Baines (who has submitted a relevant 
representation opposing the application) contacted Licensing 
Services with the enquiry detailed below:-

 “Could you confirm that the Environmental Health Officer has:

a. Visited the location?
b. Consulted the previous history relating to Edwards when 

measurements of noise were made which concluded that the 
building was not suitable for playing amplified music?”

2.13 Further to this enquiry the Licensing Department contacted Mr 
Matthew Rhodes and Mr Peter Hollingsworth, Environmental Health 
Department at High Peak Borough Council and the following 

Page 8



response was received from Mr Matthew Rhodes:-

a. “I can confirm that I visited the site on the 14th June 2018;
b. I’ve spoken to Mr Hollingsworth (EHO) who investigated previous 

complaints from the site, and looked at case notes. I can find no 
suggestion that the building is not suitable for playing amplified 
music. A visual inspection suggests the building is well constructed 
with few, and small window openings (all be it single glazed). 
Previous noise measurements undertaken by HPBC (that I can find 
reference of) concerned noise from ventilation/air conditioning 
condenser fans.” 

2.14    A summary of historical complaints/actions dealt with by the 
Environmental Health Department when the premises was 
previously licensed is attached at Appendix 4.

2.15 During the consultation period 3 representations were received in 
support of the application. Copies of these are attached at Appendix 
5.

2.16 On 27 June 2018 Mr Tony Dales sent a copy of a location plan 
detailing the premises and nearby residential properties. Mr Dales 
requested this be included in the report and is therefore attached at 
Appendix 6.

Local Policy Consideration
 
2.17 In carrying out its duties under the Act, the Licensing Authority will 

actively promote the licensing objectives, namely: -

   The prevention of crime and disorder
   Public safety
   The prevention of public nuisance, and
   The protection of children from harm

2.18 The Licensing Authority will view each objective with equal 
importance and pay due regard to any guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under section 182 of the Act and the local 
statement of licensing policy.

   2.19 The Licensing Authority has the ability to deviate from both the 
guidance issued by the Secretary of State and/or this statement of 
licensing policy where the facts of a case merit it. If such an 
occasion does arise then full reasons for such deviation will be given 
as part of the published decision.

Page 9



2.20 The Sub-Committee must also have regard to all of the 
representations made and the evidence it hears.

2.21 The Sub-Committee must take such of the following steps, as it 
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives:

(a) Grant the application as applied for.
(b) Modify the conditions of the licence, by altering or omitting or 

adding to them.
(c) Reject the whole or part of the application.

and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if 
any of them are altered or omitted or any new condition is added.
 
The Sub-Committee is asked to note that it may not modify the 
conditions or reject the whole or part of the application merely 
because it considers it desirable to do so.  It must actually be 
appropriate in order to promote the licensing objectives.

2.22 The applicant or interested party have the right of appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within the period of 21 days beginning with the 
day on which the applicant and premises licence holder are 
notified in writing of the Licensing Sub-Committee’s decision.

Options and Analysis

There are no options to consider other than detailed in the 
report. Applications made within the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005.

Implications

3.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

None

3.2 Employees

None

3.3 Equalities

This report has been prepared in accordance with the 
Council’s Diversity and Equalities Policies.

3.4 Financial Considerations

Page 10



There are no direct financial implications for the authority 
from this application, although should Mr Roy Irving or 
any persons who have submitted either a representation 
in opposition or support of the application exercise their 
right of appeal against any decision made by the Sub-
Committee, then there would be additional costs incurred 
by the authority in defending the decision in court.

3.5 Legal

All parties have the right of appeal to the Magistrates 
Court.

3.6 Sustainability.

None.

Alicia Patterson
Operations Manager – Environmental Health

Background Papers Location Contact

Web Links and
Background Papers
High Peak Borough Council 
Licensing Policy:- 2010
Amended Guidance issued under 
Section 182 of the LA2003

Licensing Section Mike Towers
Senior Officer (Housing, 
Public Health & Licensing)
0345 129 7777 ext 4400

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93



Page 94



From: "Rhodes, Matthew" <Matthew.Rhodes@highpeak.gov.uk>
Date: 13 July 2018 at 11:08:12 BST
To: 'Tony Dales' <TDales@bakers-solicitors.com>
Subject: RE: Edwards Wine Bar

Hi Tony
Please find below a quick precis of noise complaints regarding Edwards Wine Bar. There would 
appear to be 6 (possibly 7) that could be classed as licensing issues.
 
Further to the suggestion that Environmental Health have stated that the building is unsuitable 
following extensive noise surveys; I’ve spoken to Mr Hollingsworth (EHO) who investigated previous 
complaints from the site, and looked at case notes. I can find no suggestion that the building is not 
suitable for playing amplified music. A visual inspection suggests the building is well constructed 
with few, and small window openings (all be it single glazed). Previous noise measurements 
undertaken by HPBC (that I can find reference of) concerned noise from ventilation/air conditioning 
condenser fans.
 

1) 2/5/2006: Flare ref. 034420 – Music noise, bass beat
Letter sent to Edwards. Case closed (13/6/06) as no further contact from client.

 
2) 8/5/2007: Flare ref. 055015 -  Loud Music at night.
 
             7/5 Call from **COMPLAINANT** - loud music started night of Sunday 29/4.

Her husband rang  at midnight to ask that it be turned down - he left message on 
answerphone.  Music was turned down a little, but bass beat still clearly audible. 
Contacted Police who visited - music stopped at 2.30am 30/4 (crime number 
106050).  Said we will contact premises.

 
             8/5
             Telephone call made to DPS following request by Sue Lomas and Ian Nichols 

regarding nuisance from premises. Advised her she was in breach of her licence 
as music should have ceased at 12:30 (went on to 2am according to DPS). She 
requested a check for a party this weekend. Advised her we would wait to see if 
we had any further complaints following her making sure all the licence 
conditions were complied with. If complaints received, subsequent events would 
be monitored.

 
             17/12/2007
             End of Job - no further complaint received.
 
3) 2/1/2008: Flare ref. 086781 – Disco Noise

“I'm just at this moment (10:20pm) suffering from disco noise coming from 
Edward's Bar in Hadfield (The Station Yard, Station Road, Hadfield),hence my 
writing this email. I know that it's New Year's Eve and that there are people in 
the pub who are enjoying having their hearing damaged, but I prefer peace and 
quiet and expect to be able to do so in my own home. My doors and windows are 
closed and my curtains are drawn, yet I can still hear music from the disco over 
the top of my Television. Without the TV's masking effect, I might as well be in 
the pub. The noise began at around 9.30pm and I suppose it will continue into 

Page 95

mailto:Matthew.Rhodes@highpeak.gov.uk
mailto:TDales@bakers-solicitors.com


the early hours. Fortunately, I sleep at the back of my house. Please ensure that 
this complaint is lodged with the licensing authorities.”

 
             9/1 Rang **COMPLAINANT** - they will contact us if he gets further problems 

and we will investigate.
 
             Case closed awaiting contact
 
4) 18/2/2008 Flare ref. 091864 – Patron Noise 
             “I am writing to you again about noise nuisance from Edward's Bar in Hadfield. 

Last night and into the small hours of today (Saturday the 16th Feb), customers 
of these premises were keeping visiting friends of ours awake.

 
             The no smoking legislation now means that a proportion of Edward's Bar 

clientelle spend time outside the bar itself (but still on their
             premises) and their laughing and joking and general banter was conducted at a 

pitch that it meant that it was impossible to sleep if you were using our front 
bedroom. I was aware of the beginnings of this nuisance from around 11.30pm 
and this grew in volume after I went to bed at the rear of the house at midnight. I 
am told by my visitors, that the noise finally stopped at around 3.00am (are they 
licensed to open this late?).

 
             Edward's Bar have provided smokers with a patio heater for their comfort, thus 

encouraging people to take their drinks out of doors and to stay outside longer 
than is necessary; isn't the licensee also obliged to monitor the behaviour of 
these customers with regard to noise and excessive drinking leading to 
rowdiness?

 
             I would like you to record this complaint, and to act to remind the Edward's Bar 

management of their obligation to their neighbours -   Just so that they know 
they are under some official scrutiny?”

 
 
5) 1/6/2009  Flare  ref. 133250 – compressor noise (not licencing issue)
6) 2/7/2009  Flare ref. 135927 -  compressor noise (not licencing issue)
 
7) 18/10/2010 Flare ref. 177133 – music noise ref condition 5 “doors and windows 

closed” 
 
             20/10/2010
             “Telephone Call Received...from **COMPLAINANT** just wants complaint to be 

logged for future reference if noise starts to be an issue. Premises normally 
reletively quiet.”

 
             20/10/2010 - Case closed after warning letter sent
 
 

Page 96



8) 14/2/11    Flare ref.187669 – Patron noise
             15/2/2011
             Telephone call made to **COMPLAINANT**- he cannot say people making noise 

were from Edward's Wine Bar, he just heard   the noise from Station Yard. I 
pointed out to him that taxis park there and therefore could have been patrons 
from Palatine et al. Discussed possibility of open letter to both pubs with L.O. 
Paul Jackson. Decided to keep under review to see if recurs. Paul to keep under 
surveillance to see if Private Hire Vehices are ranking (illegal for private hire) in 
station yard.

 
9) 9/8/11      Flare ref. 203502 -  Fan/compressor noise ((not licencing issue)
 
10) 6/9/11     Flare ref.  205707 – Patron noise 
             “**COMPLAINANTS**property faces the back of Edwards Wine Bar, the pub has 

double doors onto the veranda. It was originally just for smokers but now a lot 
of people use it and throughout the summer the doors are open most of the 
time. It is very, very, noisy with music, general noise and people swearing 
sometimes till very late at night. At the back customers have also urinated 
outside. It is getting much worse and particularly on football days. 
**COMPLAINANT**believes that it is part of their conditions that the doors are 
kept closed.

 
16/9/11
DPS advised - licensing conditions require doors closed. No further complaint 
contact, case closed

 
 
Matthew Rhodes
Environmental Health Officer (Pollution Specialist)
 
High Peak Borough Council, Town Hall, Buxton, Derbyshire. SK17 6EL
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek, Staffordshire. 
ST13 6HQ
    Tel:              01298 28400 (ext 4457)
 Mobile:        07976753809
@   E-mail:         Matthew.Rhodes@highpeak.gov.uk     Matthew.Rhodes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
     Website:           www.highpeak.gov.uk                                     www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

 

Page 97

mailto:matthewr@highpeak.gov.uk
mailto:Matthew.Rhodes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/
http://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108


	Agenda
	3 Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence for Edwards Wine Bar, Station Approach, Hadfield, Glossop, SK13 1AA
	Report Appendix 1
	Report Appendix 2
	Report Appendix 3
	Report Appendix 4
	Report Appendix 5
	Report Appendix 6
	T Dales Additional EHO Info 16 7 18
	T Dales Additional Info PRS  PPL Licence 13 7 18
	T Dales Additional Info  Pictures of Premises 16 7 18


